
Committee Agenda   

1 

 
 
Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee 
Monday, 17th July, 2006 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Committee Room 1 
  
Time: 6.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Graham Lunnun, Research and Democratic Services 
Tel: 01992 564244 Email: glunnun@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Knapman (Chairman), Mrs D Collins, Mrs A Grigg, S Metcalfe, C Whitbread.  
 
 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE THE START TIME OF THIS MEETING 
 

 
BUSINESS 

 
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 2. MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 14) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 19 June 2006 

(attached). 
 

 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this 
agenda. 
 
 

 4. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 

 



Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee 17 July 2006 
 

2 

concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks’ notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GROUP  (Pages 15 - 18) 
 

  The Management Board has requested that this Committee consider and note the 
minutes of the Council’s recently established Corporate Governance Group. The 
minutes of the most recent meeting are attached. 
 

 6. INTERNAL AUDIT - MONITORING REPORT - APRIL/JUNE 2006 AND WORK 
PROGRAMME - JULY/SEPTEMBER 2006  (Pages 19 - 34) 

 
  (Chief Internal Auditor) To consider the attached report on work undertaken by Internal 

Audit between April and June 2006 and the proposed work plan for July – September 
2006. 
 

 7. RISK MANAGEMENT - STRATEGY AND POLICY  (Pages 35 - 46) 
 

  (Head of Finance) To consider the attached report. 
 

 8. RISK MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE ACTION PLANS  (Pages 47 - 52) 
 

  (Head of Finance) To consider the attached report. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 



Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee 17 July 2006 
 

3 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Finance and Performance 

Management Cabinet Committee 
Date: Monday, 19 June 2006 

    
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping Time: 6.00  - 7.40 pm 
  
Members 
Present: 

Councillors J Knapman (Chairman), Mrs D Collins and C Whitbread 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

Councillor D Jacobs 

  
Apologies: Councillor Mrs A Grigg 
  
Officers 
Present: 

P Haywood (Joint Chief Executive), B Palmer (Head of Finance), D Macnab 
(Head of Leisure Services), P Maddock (Assistant Head of Finance), J 
Akerman (Chief Internal Auditor) and G Lunnun (Democratic Services 
Manager) 

  
 

1. MINUTES  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 3 April 2006 be 

taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made pursuant to the Council's Code of Conduct. 
 

3. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting. 
 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT - MONITORING REPORT - JANUARY/MARCH 2006 AND 
WORK PROGRAMME - APRIL/JUNE 2006  
 
The Committee considered a report which summarised the work undertaken by the 
Internal Audit Unit between January and March 2006.  The report also contained the 
Work Plan for the first quarter of the current financial year and a status report on 
previous audit recommendations. 
 
Members noted that the establishment of the Unit for 2006/07 had been reduced 
from six full-time equivalent posts to 5.5 full-time equivalent posts following changes 
to the Council's methods of service delivery for parts of the Leisure and Highways 
Services.  One part-time post was being held vacant for the time being in order to 
provide some budget flexibility to meet the cost of specialist auditors and external 
contractors to undertake specific audits within the approved Plan.  The average level 
of sickness per member of staff over the 12 month period had been 8.9 days, which 
whilst of concern was still less than the Council average. 
 
During the quarter, audit reports had been issued in respect of the following: 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Finance and Performance Management                             Monday, 19 June 2006 
Cabinet Committee 

2 

Systems Audits 
 
(a) Works Unit; 
 
(b) Capital Finance; 
 
(c) Estates Management; 
 
(d) Housing Repairs; 
 
(e) Council Tax; 
 
(f) Non-Domestic Rates; 
 
(g) Managing Sickness Absence; 
 
(h) Rechargeable Works - Follow up; 
 
(i) North Weald Airfield - Follow up (Draft Report); 
 
(j) Risk Management - Follow up; 
 
(k) Creditors - Follow up. 
 
Investigations 
 
(l) Corporate - Internet Usage; 
 
(m) Housing - Internet Abuse. 
 
In addition, systems audits of the Council's IT Procurement System and Staffing 
Establishment controls had been substantially completed by 31 March but the reports 
had not been finalised.  Members were advised that the main conclusions from the 
systems audits undertaken, indicated the systems were generally operating 
satisfactorily in those areas, and no fundamental errors or control issues had been 
identified. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor pointed out that the time taken on investigation work 
during the quarter had totalled eight days (compared to 65 days in the previous 
quarter) and had mainly related to two separate issues concerning email and internet 
usage, and hospitality. 
 
Members considered the key findings from the audits. 
 
Attention was drawn to a schedule setting out the current status of the planned audits 
in the 2005/06 Audit Plan, as approved in April 2005.  Whilst the majority of planned 
audits had been completed by 31 March, a small number had slipped to 2006/07 or 
would not be carried out due to changed circumstances.  Where appropriate, 
prioritisation had been based on a risk assessment. 
 
The Committee considered the Unit's performance in relation to the Local 
Performance Indicator targets for 2005/06. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Finance and Performance Management                             Monday, 19 June 2006 
Cabinet Committee 

3 

 RECOMMENDED: 
 
 (1) That the reports issued and significant findings between January and 

March 2006 be noted; 
 
 (2) That the Audit follow up Status Report and System Improvement 

Schedule be noted; 
 
 (3) That the Work Plan for April to June 2006 be noted; and 
 
 (4) That the 2005/06 Audit Plan Status Report be noted. 
 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT - 2004/05  
 
The Chief Internal Auditor presented the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2005/06.  
He advised that it had been based on the "Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government" produced by CIPFA. 
 
The Committee noted that one of the main purposes of the report was to support the 
Internal Audit opinion on the adequacy of the Council's internal control environment 
as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient, and effective use of resources.  
The report was, therefore, part of the evidence that underpinned the Corporate 
Statement on Internal Control published in the Council's Statutory Statement of 
Accounts, in line with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 
(as amended). 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor advised that the amended regulations also required the 
Council, from 1 April 2006, to conduct a formal review at least once a year of the 
effectiveness of its system of internal audit.  Part 3 of the Annual Report provided an 
analysis to form the basis of the review. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor advised that the Council's systems of internal control had 
identified some weaknesses in the application of some of the systems, and 
occasional lapses in the application of Financial Regulations.  These issues had 
been picked up through the Council's internal control mechanisms and had been 
dealt with promptly by Service management in liaison with Internal Audit.  The 
outcomes had been reported to the Cabinet Committee during the year via the 
Internal Audit quarterly monitoring reports, and immediate steps had been taken to 
improve the respective systems.  The Chief Internal Auditor advised that these 
examples of non-compliance were limited and did not compromise the Council's 
overall control environment. 
 
Attention was drawn to the issue of a user-friendly summary of Financial Regulations 
and the provision of training for 90 non-finance managers. 
 
The Committee noted that on the basis of the audit work completed, it was 
considered that the Council had in place a satisfactory framework of internal control, 
which provided reasonable assurance regarding the efficient and effective 
achievement of its objectives in 2005/06. 
 
Members were advised that the CIPFA Internal Audit Benchmarking Club was an 
important source of comparable national data for Internal Audit and produced 
statistical information on costs, performance and audit coverage.  In relation to the 
Council's "family" group of ten authorities with similar profiles, audit coverage for 
main financial systems had been marginally above average and slightly below 
average for districts as a whole.  The coverage of main systems (finance and non-



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Corporate Governance Group Date: Wednesday, 7 June 2006 
    
Place: P. Haywood's Office, Civic Offices, 

Epping 
Time: 9.00  - 10.35 am 

  
Members 
Present: 

P Haywood, J Scott, J Akerman, C O'Boyle and R Palmer 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

(none) 

  
Apologies: (none) 
  
Officers 
Present: 

I Willett (Head of Research and Democratic Services) 

  
 

45. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (26.04.06)  
 
Agreed. 
 

46. MATTERS ARISING  
 
(a) Electronic Electoral Pilot (Minute 39(b)) 
 
I Willett reported that the Council's bid for abortive costs was now with the 
Department for Constitutional Affairs and totalled something over £9,000.  He 
reported that the Council had been advised that the DCA were happy with the 
proposal but Treasury approval was required. 
 
(b) Standards Committee - Chairmanship (Minute 40(6)) 
 
I Willett updated the Corporate Governance Group on the current position. 
 
(c) Staff Code of Conduct (Minute 41) 
 
The Group noted that the draft of the proposed Code of Conduct for staff had now 
been published and sent to staff representatives and will be submitted to the next 
available meeting of the Joint Consultative Committee. 
 
J Scott raised a few drafting changes he would like to make and undertook to discuss 
these with T Tidey direct. 
 
ACTION 
 
J Scott to discuss with T Tidey. 
 

47. STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
 
The Corporate Governance Group considered a draft Corporate Statement of 
Internal Controls for inclusion in the Statutory Statement of Accounts for 2005/6.  The 
Group agreed the draft and also agreed that the signing of the documents should 
take place after the Finance and Performance Management Committee on 

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



Corporate Governance Group  Wednesday, 7 June 2006 

2 

19 June 2006.  In view of forthcoming annual leave, it will be necessary for 
P Haywood to sign the document on 20 June 2006.  It was also agreed that the 
Leader of the Council, Councillor Mrs D Collins, should sign the document although 
she had not been Leader in the year in question. 
 
ACTION 
 
J Akerman to submit to Finance and Performance Management Cabinet 
Committee on 19 June 2006. 
 
J Akerman to make arrangements for the signing of the document as indicated. 
 

48. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
R Palmer presented the Corporate Statement of Risks which was due for 
consideration at the Finance and Performance Management Committee on 
17 July 2006. 
 
The Corporate Governance Group considered the draft in detail and requested the 
following changes: 
 
(a) Risk 1 - Agreed that reference to market supplements should be made where 

these were being paid and that an update was required from the Head of 
Planning and Economic Development to Management Board about the 
position. 

 
(b) Risks 3 and 4 - Recast the wording in more positive terms. 
 
(c) Risk 5 - Make reference to the Leader of the Council, to the Council and to 

the Joint Chief Executives, not named individuals. 
 
(d) Risk 6 and 7(a) - Replace references to "alliance" with "coalition" between the 

two political groups.  Agreed that Risk 6 could refer to a new risk of the 
existing coalition breaking up, bearing in mind the finely balanced numbers of 
councillors in the coalition and non coalition sides. 

 
(e) Risk 19 - Amend wording to refer to a trend which was moving towards an 

improvement in the situation. 
 
(f) Risk 20 - It was agreed that the performance of external contracts might 

change the assessment of risk in any particular service and, it was felt 
important that these should be reflected in a risk register which would adapt 
quickly to changes in circumstances.  The Group agreed that this process of 
making the risk register a dynamic document would be assisted by regular 
reports to the Senior Management Team whereby Heads of Service could 
update the Risk Statement and that each Management Board meeting should 
have a standing item to deal with this point. 

 
It was also agreed that the word "established" should be substituted for 
"working well" coupled with reference to business continuity arrangements 
which had proved effective in relation to the Waste Management Contract. 

 
Under this heading there should also be reference to the possible re-letting of 
the Waste Management Contract after the current three month period comes 
to an end. 

 

Page 16



Corporate Governance Group  Wednesday, 7 June 2006 

3 

(e) Affordable Housing - Reference to be made to clarification of Estates 
Management Portfolio Holder. 

 
 It was also agreed that throughout the Risk Statement, there should be no 

references to named individuals, either Heads of Service or Portfolio Holders, 
but simply the relevant Portfolio titles and Heads of Service designations. 

 
ACTION 
 
R Palmer to finalise Risk Register. 
 

49. STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 
(a) Current Investigations 
 
Noted that of the two current investigations being conducted locally, in one case, a 
report had now been issued which would shortly be reviewed by the Standards 
Committee to determine what further action should be taken by way of adjudication.  
In the other case, the report of the Investigating Officer was expected in the near 
future and this in turn would be referred to the Standards Committee for review. 
 
(b) Other Current Complaints 
 
It was noted that there were two other complaints regarding District Councillors which 
were currently being reviewed by the Standards Board for England. 
 
(c) Other Potential Complaints 
 
The Corporate Governance Group received a further report on one other case of a 
potential complaint concerning a District Councillor which had yet to be fully resolved 
in terms of submission to the Standards Board for England. 
 
(d) Annual Report 2005/6 
 
I Willett reported that a draft annual report of the Standards Committee would shortly 
be published. 
 

50. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
It was agreed that the next meeting should be rearranged for 6 September 2006, 
before the Management Board's meeting on that date. 
 

 
 

CHAIRMAN
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT- MONITORING REPORT APRIL - JUNE 2006 

AND WORK PLAN JULY - SEPTEMBER 2006 
 
 
The Committee is requested to note the following issues arising from the Internal Audit 
Team’s first quarter monitoring report for 2006/07: 
 
(a) The reports issued between April and June 2006 and significant findings 

(Appendix 1);  
 
(b) The Audit follow up status report (Appendix 2);  
 
(c) The work plan July - September 2006 (Appendix 3); and 
 
(d) The 2006/07 Audit Plan status report (Appendix 4) 
 
 
            Introduction 
 
1. This report provides a summary of the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Unit 

between April and June 2006, and details the overall performance to date against the 
Audit Plan for 2006/07.  The report also contains the Internal Audit work plan for the 
second quarter 2006/07 and a status report on previous audit recommendations.  

 
 
2. Resources Available: 3 months Estimate 
 Apr-June 06 April 06- 
 (Actual) Mar 07 
 
 Number of days required to meet the audit plan  2481 9901 

 
 Number of days available based on staff in post 320 1400  
 Less statutory and annual leave (32) (166) 
 Sick leave (35)   (32) 
 Training   (2)   (35)  
 Planning, supervisory, management and non-chargeable (34) (177) 
 
 Available Audit days 2172  9902 

 Bought in Days   5 - 
 
            Total Audit Days                                                                    222                        990 
 
 Note1 audit days available if full establishment achieved 
 Note2 actual audit days in period  
 
 
            Current Staffing Position 
 
3. The Unit has an establishment of 5.5 full time equivalent (fte) posts compared to 6 fte in 

2005/06. The Audit Assistant post (now part time) was vacant throughout 2005/06, 
leaving 5 fte staff available during the first quarter 2006/07. The Audit Assistant post is 
being held vacant for the time being to provide some budget flexibility to meet the cost 
of specialist auditors to be bought in for specific pieces of work. This position is likely to 
be maintained in the future, and approval will be sought to formalise the arrangement 
during the 2007/08 budget process.   

 
4. Sickness during the first quarter of 2006/07 amounted to 35 days compared to 9.5, 2, 

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



- 2 - 

and 5 days respectively in the preceding three quarters. The vast majority of the 
sickness in the first quarter related to the certificated long term sickness of one member 
of the Team. Therefore, whilst the average level of sickness per member of staff over 
the last 12 months has been 13.5 days and is of concern, the latest figures are 
explained by this factor. Sickness continues to be monitored and managed in 
accordance with the Council’s management of absence policy.  

 
            Work carried out in the period 

 
5. The audit reports issued in the first quarter are listed in paragraph 11 below. The audit 

opinions and main conclusions flowing from these reports are attached at Appendix 1. 
 
6. Follow up audits are being phased during the year according to risk and other 

prioritisation factors, and are being combined with finance systems audits where 
appropriate. A number of systems audits were carried out across a range of Services in 
the first quarter. 

 
7. The Audit Team has also provided support to management on a number of corporate 

issues and has performed a range of tasks including standing membership of project 
teams. Topic areas included the production of the Council’s draft Statutory Statement 
on Internal Control, and membership of the officer Use of Resources and Value for 
Money working groups. There was also close involvement in a range of control issues 
surrounding the transfer of the waste management contract, including verification of the 
staff TUPE list. 

 
8. Supervision and management time has included the normal management and review 

functions undertaken by the Chief Internal Auditor. During the first quarter the Unit’s 
Annual Report for 2005/06 was prepared, and a national benchmarking return was 
submitted to assist in the production of comparative data about Audit activity and 
performance across the country. In addition the Chief Internal Auditor has been 
involved in the corporate activities referred to in the previous paragraph. 

 
9. The time taken on investigation work during this quarter totalled 15 days and related to 

two matters, one of which is still in progress.  The report on the completed investigation 
is referred to below.  

 
10. The Audit Commission has been consulted with on the content of this report and the 

second quarter audit plan for 2006/07, and had no comments. 
 
            Reports Issued and Significant Observations 
 
11. The following audit reports were issued in the first quarter: 
 

• Safer Communities Team Building Day (investigation) 
• Stores Stocktake and report 
• Norway House 
• Planning cash receipting 
• BVPI verification 
• Car Parking contract 
• IT procurement 
• Benefit Fraud Investigation 
• Establishment list 
• Use of Consultants (draft report) 
• Cash receipting (draft report) 
• Sundry Debtors follow up 
• OHMS Housing Management System follow up 
 

Page 20



- 3 - 

 
 

 In addition to the audits listed, an audit of the Council’s Local Performance Indicators 
for 2005/06 was substantially complete by 30 June, but the report had not been 
finalised. This audit is not included in the performance figures in paragraph 20.  

 
12. Members are looking for an improvement this year from the ‘satisfactory’ assurance 

given by the Chief Internal Auditor on the Council’s control systems in 2005/06, 
particularly as this assessment is a factor in the Council’s annual ‘Statement on Internal 
Control’. The main conclusions from the systems audits undertaken in the first quarter 
2006/07 indicated that systems were generally operating satisfactorily in those areas 
reviewed, and no fundamental errors or control issues were identified.  However, an 
investigation highlighted a number of compliance and supervisory issues, to be 
addressed by the Service area concerned (see below). A number of recommendations 
for process improvement across Services were identified, including controls over 
corporate debt recovery, cash handling and system reconciliations. These have been 
taken up with the Service areas concerned. 

 
13.       Some of the key findings from the audits are extracted from Appendix 1 and repeated 

below. These extracts indicate where progress is being made to improve systems in the 
areas highlighted.  

        
            Safer Communities Team Building Day [EFDC/Police/CVS] 

On balance the investigation has concluded that the day was probably more about 
networking and socialising than achieving work based objectives. The cost of the day 
represented an extravagant and inappropriate use of public money, which ran the risk 
of bringing the Council into disrepute. The nature of the event was inappropriate in 
relation to any objectives (had any been formally set), which could have been achieved 
from the day.  

 
            Outcome: The Head of RDS will consider whether breaches of the Council’s disciplinary 

Code have occurred on this occasion.  Management within RDS will ensure that a 
robust system is in place for monitoring orders and certifying expenditure.  

 
            Stores Stocktake 
            The increase in the number of discrepancies between the stock record and actual items 

in stock is of concern….this is the second year Audit have reported a high level of 
discrepancies. This indicates a steady decline in control standards and calls into 
question the security and accuracy of the stock records. 

 
Outcome: Management will review the stock recording system and related processes to 
identify ways of applying greater control 
 
Planning Cash receipting (audit carried out at request of the Head of Service) 

       The current system contains serious control weakness for low value receipts, which 
leaves the Council exposed to risk and could easily provide the opportunity for 
undetected theft. The absence of sound internal controls, including clear separation of 
duties… is in breach of Financial Regulations. 

 
        Outcome:  Management has made proposals to Cabinet, which will effectively remove 

the need to accept any amount of cash at Planning reception. 
 

            Sundry debtors follow up 
            The sundry debtors systems are improving, as evidenced by an improved debt recovery 

performance in 2005/06. There is potential for further improvement in corporate 
systems for the monitoring and recovery of debts, as the residual level of sundry debts 
outstanding remained in excess of £2.4m at 31 March 2006. 

 
Page 21



- 4 - 

            Outcome: Revised debt recovery procedures will be consulted upon with Management 
Board, following which it is hoped to implement new procedures in September 2006. 

             
            Establishment List 
            Corporate controls for managing the establishment data are not operating satisfactorily. 

The audit identified a number of variances between data held on the establishment list 
and HR/Payroll system. The establishment list data on the HR/Payroll system was not 
up to date. 

 
            Outcome: Improved systems of control and reconciliation will be in place by the end of 

the year. 
 
 
            Follow Up of Previous Audits  

 
14. When following up previous audits it is normally found that the majority of 

recommendations are being implemented by Service management, and this was the 
case with most of the follow up audits undertaken in the first quarter. However it is 
sometimes found that not all previously agreed recommendations have been carried out 
within the agreed timescales. Attached at Appendix 2 is a summary schedule designed 
to monitor the follow up of previous audits as an aid to ensuring timely and adequate 
follow up both by Internal Audit and Service Management.  

 
15. All of the recommended actions for system improvement arising from a previous 

investigation, and reported throughout the last financial year, have now been taken. The 
residual list of items reported at the last meeting, related to the production of an annual 
report in respect of Section 106 Planning Agreements, and the production of a staff 
Code of Conduct. Both of these issues have now been addressed; the S.106 report was 
submitted to the District Development Committee in June, and the draft staff Code of 
Conduct is being submitted to the local JCC. 

 
 
            Three-month work plan (Appendix 3) 
 
16. The Audit Commission requires all of the Council’s main financial systems to be audited 

during 2006/07.  If this is not achieved in-house, the Audit Commission may decide to 
carry out extra work at the Council’s expense.  However, it is recognised that audit 
coverage is also required within Council services other than finance. For this reason the 
Audit Plan for the second quarter covers a broad range of Service areas. 

 
 
            Audit Plan 2006/07 (Appendix 4) 
 
17. The current status of the planned audits in this year’s Audit Plan, as approved in April 

2006, is set out at Appendix 4, and reflects the work carried out to date and the work 
plan for the second quarter. Provisional timescales have also been set for the audits to 
be undertaken in the second half year. 

 
 

Page 22



- 5 - 

            Performance Management 
 
18.       The Internal Audit Team has local performance indicator targets to meet in 2006/07. 

The specific LPIs for Audit are set out below: 
 

    Actual 
2003/04 

   Actual 
2004/05 

  Actual 
2005/06 

   Target    
2006/07 

  Actual 
Apr-June 
2006/07 

% Planned audits 
completed 
 

72% 86% 86% 85% 72% 

% chargeable “fee” 
staff time 
 

65% 64% 67% 65% 68% 

Average cost per 
audit day  

£275 £297 £292 £280 £304 

% User satisfaction 
 

80% 80% 85% 80% 75% 

 
  
19. The percentage of planned audits completed in the first quarter does not include a 

substantially completed audit referred to in paragraph 11 of this report. There has been 
some slippage in the achievement of the first quarter plan, but the position is expected 
to be recovered later in the year.  

 
20. The indicator for chargeable time has been achieved despite a member of the team 

having extended, certificated sickness during the quarter.  
 
21. The target cost per audit day for the first quarter has not been met, partly due to the 

effect of having half a post vacant, which affects the recovery of fixed overheads. It is 
also proposed to increase this unit cost target to £285 for 2006/07, to reflect the impact 
on overhead recovery, of the reduction in half a post, agreed during the latter stages of 
the 2006/07 budget process. 

 
 
            Training 
 
22. During the first quarter, the Chief Internal Auditor attended a workshop outlining 

CIPFA’s view of the purpose, function and role of an Audit Committee in the public 
sector. This workshop will be useful in bringing forward proposals for the establishment 
of an Audit Committee in EFDC later in the year.  

  
23. Two members of staff attended a training session on the introduction of the new e-

procurement ordering system, due to be implemented later this year. Another member 
of staff was due to start the second part of the CIPFA Diploma in Public Audit, but this 
has unfortunately had to be postponed as a result of long term sickness.   

 
24. The potential for joint training of Audit staff is being discussed by the Essex Audit 

Group. 
 
 

Page 23



- 6
 - 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 a
ud

its
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

Q
ua

rt
er

 1
 

A
pr

il 
- J

un
e 

20
06

 
 

 
R

ep
or

t 
N

o.
 

 
Ti

tle
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 

A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
 

 
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
/C

om
m

en
ts

 
 

 
38

6 
 S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
Te

am
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
ay

  
(In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n)

 

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 O
n 

ba
la

nc
e 

th
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
ha

s 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

da
y 

w
as

 p
ro

ba
bl

y 
m

or
e 

ab
ou

t 
ne

tw
or

ki
ng

 
an

d 
so

ci
al

is
in

g 
th

an
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
w

or
k 

ba
se

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

. T
he

 c
os

t 
of

 th
e 

da
y 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

an
 e

xt
ra

va
ga

nt
 a

nd
 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 u
se

 o
f 

pu
bl

ic
 m

on
ey

, 
w

hi
ch

 
ra

n 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 b
rin

gi
ng

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
to

 
di

sr
ep

ut
e.

 T
he

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 w
as

 
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

(h
ad

 a
ny

 b
ee

n 
fo

rm
al

ly
 s

et
), 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

da
y.

 It
 is

 a
ls

o 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

ev
en

t c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

at
 a

 m
or

e 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ve
nu

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 D
is

tri
ct

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ou
tc

om
e.

 
  

 Th
e 

Te
am

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
da

y 
w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 o
n 

30
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
05

 
at

 
N

ew
m

ar
ke

t 
R

ac
ec

ou
rs

e.
  

Th
er

e 
w

er
e 

13
 p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
, 4

 fr
om

 E
FD

C
, 7

 fr
om

 
E

ss
ex

 P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

2 
fro

m
 th

e 
C

V
S

.  
Th

e 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 e
ve

nt
 w

as
 £

1,
66

6 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

of
fic

er
 

tim
e,

 b
ut

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

f £
36

6 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 

th
e 

ba
se

 c
os

t o
f £

10
0 

pe
r h

ea
d.

  
Th

is
 w

as
 a

 r
ac

e 
da

y 
an

d 
It 

is
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

th
at

 t
he

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
du

ci
ve

 t
o 

co
-

or
di

na
te

d 
w

or
k 

ba
se

d 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 t
he

 
da

y,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 g

iv
en

 t
he

 o
bv

io
us

 d
is

tra
ct

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

ra
ci

ng
 f

ro
m

 e
ar

ly
 a

fte
rn

oo
n 

on
w

ar
ds

. 
In

 a
ny

 
ev

en
t, 

co
pi

ou
s 

am
ou

nt
s 

of
 f

oo
d 

an
d 

dr
in

k 
w

er
e 

be
in

g 
se

rv
ed

 w
ith

in
 o

ne
 o

r 
tw

o 
ho

ur
s 

of
 t

he
 p

ar
ty

 
ar

riv
in

g 
at

 th
e 

ve
nu

e,
 w

hi
ch

 c
as

ts
 fu

rth
er

 d
ou

bt
 o

n 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

pr
od

uc
tiv

e 
w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

af
te

r 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 p
er

io
d.

  
It 

ha
s 

no
t 

th
er

ef
or

e 
be

en
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 w

he
th

er
 

th
e 

ev
en

t p
ro

vi
de

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

. 
 

37
8 

 S
to

re
s 

S
to

ck
ta

ke
 

 W
or

ks
 

 Th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
ie

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
st

oc
k 

re
co

rd
 

an
d 

ac
tu

al
 it

em
s 

in
 s

to
ck

 is
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

, a
nd

 
is

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 d
is

ap
po

in
tin

g 
as

 th
is

 is
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 y
ea

r A
ud

it 
ha

ve
 re

po
rte

d 
a 

hi
gh

 
le

ve
l o

f d
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
. T

hi
s 

in
di

ca
te

s 
a 

st
ea

dy
 d

ec
lin

e 
in

 c
on

tro
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 
in

ev
ita

bl
y 

ca
lls

 in
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
th

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f t
he

 s
to

ck
 re

co
rd

s.
 

 W
hi

le
 

it 
is

 
un

de
rs

to
od

 
th

at
 

th
e 

W
or

ks
 

U
ni

t 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 p
ro

bl
em

s,
 t

he
 e

rr
or

 r
at

e 
is

 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

en
tir

el
y 

at
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 t

hi
s 

fa
ct

or
.  

C
on

se
qu

en
tly

, 
W

or
ks

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

ha
ve

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 s

to
ck

 r
ec

or
di

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 a

nd
 r

el
at

ed
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 i
de

nt
ify

 w
ay

s 
of

 a
pp

ly
in

g 
gr

ea
te

r 
co

nt
ro

l, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

pl
ac

in
g 

th
e 

ag
ei

ng
 

an
d 

lim
ite

d 
co

m
pu

te
r 

sy
st

em
 

w
ith

 
a 

m
od

er
n 

sy
st

em
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

in
 a

 m
or

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

Page 24



- 7
 - 

 
R

ep
or

t 
N

o.
 

 
Ti

tle
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 

A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
 

 
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
/C

om
m

en
ts

 
 

 
38

5 
 N

or
w

ay
 H

ou
se

 
 H

ou
si

ng
 

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 a

ud
it.

 F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 u

se
 

of
 th

e 
til

l a
nd

 th
e 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 N

or
w

ay
 

H
ou

se
 re

nt
s 

on
to

 th
e 

O
H

M
S

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ill

 
im

pr
ov

e 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tro

ls
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n.

 T
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

di
sa

tio
n 

of
 e

le
ct

ric
ity

 b
ill

in
g 

an
d 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f m

et
er

s 
w

he
re

 in
st

al
le

d 
w

ill
 s

im
pl

ify
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

an
d 

ag
ai

n 
im

pr
ov

e 
co

nt
ro

l. 
  

 W
hi

le
 th

e 
m

an
ua

l s
ys

te
m

s 
of

 in
co

m
e 

co
nt

ro
l, 

w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
s,

 b
ot

h 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ho
st

el
 a

nd
 w

ith
in

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
ar

e 
fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 c
or

re
ct

ly
, t

he
y 

ar
e 

cu
m

be
rs

om
e 

an
d 

la
bo

ur
 in

te
ns

iv
e,

 a
nd

 th
e 

sp
re

ad
sh

ee
ts

 d
o 

no
t 

co
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f c

on
tro

ls
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 th
e 

O
H

M
S

 
sy

st
em

.  
 

 
38

3 
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
as

h 
re

ce
ip

tin
g 

 P
la

nn
in

g 
 Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ys

te
m

 c
on

ta
in

s 
se

rio
us

 
co

nt
ro

l w
ea

kn
es

s 
fo

r l
ow

 v
al

ue
 re

ce
ip

ts
, 

w
hi

ch
 le

av
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ex
po

se
d 

to
 ri

sk
 

an
d 

co
ul

d 
ea

si
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 fo

r 
un

de
te

ct
ed

 th
ef

t. 
Th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 s
ou

nd
 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tro
ls

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 c

le
ar

 s
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n,

 re
ce

ip
tin

g 
an

d 
ba

nk
in

g 
of

 in
co

m
e 

is
 in

 b
re

ac
h 

of
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
. 

 Th
er

e 
ar

e 
lim

ite
d 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 

lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 a

n 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 h

an
dl

in
g 

ch
eq

ue
 a

nd
 c

as
h 

pa
ym

en
ts

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
ys

te
m

 
le

av
es

 th
e 

st
af

f o
pe

ra
tin

g 
it 

ex
tre

m
el

y 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
sh

ou
ld

 lo
ss

es
 o

cc
ur

 a
nd

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
 T

he
 s

ys
te

m
 

is
 c

le
ar

ly
 o

pe
n 

to
 e

xp
lo

ita
tio

n.
 [M

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 
no

w
 m

ad
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 C
ab

in
et

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

re
m

ov
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 a

cc
ep

t a
ny

 a
m

ou
nt

 
of

 c
as

h 
at

 P
la

nn
in

g 
re

ce
pt

io
n]

. 
 

 
38

9 
 B

V
P

I 
V

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 

 A
ll 

 Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

om
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 B
V

P
I d

at
a 

an
d 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 w
ha

t i
s 

re
qu

ire
d,

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 a

ud
it.

 H
ow

ev
er

 fu
rth

er
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 s
til

l n
ee

de
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

n 
au

di
t t

ra
il 

ca
n 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r a

ll 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
, t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

oe
s 

no
t q

ua
lif

y 
th

e 
B

V
P

Is
 w

he
n 

th
ei

r a
ud

it 
is

 c
on

du
ct

ed
. 

 

 A
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 9
 B

V
P

Is
 w

er
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 in
 d

et
ai

l 
ac

ro
ss

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 W

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
w

he
re

 s
up

pl
ie

d,
 

w
er

e 
ve

rif
ie

d 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

. T
w

o 
B

V
P

Is
 

(o
ne

 in
 L

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 o

ne
 in

 H
ou

si
ng

) c
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
ve

rif
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

tim
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
du

e 
to

 
th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

su
pp

lie
d 

us
ed

 to
 

ca
lc

ul
at

e 
th

e 
B

V
P

I. 
 

W
ith

in
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
tw

o 
B

V
P

Is
 

ap
pe

ar
ed

 t
o 

be
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

. 
Th

e 
fiv

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 B
V

P
Is

, 
tw

o 
fo

r 
P

la
nn

in
g,

 t
w

o 
fo

r 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
on

e 
fo

r 
H

um
an

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

, 
w

er
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

 a
nd

 v
er

ifi
ed

 to
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s.
 

Page 25



- 8
 - 

 
R

ep
or

t 
N

o.
 

 
Ti

tle
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 

A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
 

 
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
/C

om
m

en
ts

 
 

 
38

8 
 C

ar
 P

ar
ki

ng
 C

on
tra

ct
 

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
 O

ve
ra

ll 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 is
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

. P
ar

ki
ng

 C
on

tro
l N

ot
ic

es
 a

re
 

be
in

g 
is

su
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

se
cu

re
ly

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
. S

om
e 

m
in

or
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 s
til

l n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ud

it 
tra

ils
, i

nc
or

po
ra

tin
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 re
co

rd
in

g 
sy

st
em

s,
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

 

 Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t s
in

ce
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

au
di

t i
n 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

04
, s

om
e 

of
 w

hi
ch

 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ed
 t

o 
ne

w
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
V

in
ci

. 
 Th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
so

m
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 c

er
ta

in
 

pa
rk

in
g 

at
te

nd
an

ts
’ p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, w

he
re

 P
A

s 
w

er
e 

no
t w

or
ki

ng
 to

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t l
ev

el
. 

A
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

sc
he

du
le

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

du
ce

s 
a 

m
on

th
ly

 re
po

rt 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 P
A

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. 
  

 
38

0 
 IT

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
 IC

T 
 Th

e 
au

di
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 s
om

e 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s,
 

m
ai

nl
y 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t t
o 

se
ek

 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 a
nd

 th
e 

or
de

rin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r t

he
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 IT

 g
oo

ds
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
Th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

re
ce

ip
t o

f I
T 

go
od

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 th

ei
r s

ub
se

qu
en

t 
pa

ym
en

t a
re

 a
de

qu
at

e.
   

 

 Th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t o

f I
T 

go
od

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
, i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 C

on
tra

ct
 

S
ta

nd
in

g 
O

rd
er

s,
 a

nd
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
tio

n 
of

 v
al

ue
 fo

r m
on

ey
. T

he
 in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

E
ss

ex
 

M
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

 s
ho

ul
d 

en
su

re
 th

at
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

is
 a

ud
it 

ar
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
an

d 
re

ct
ifi

ed
.  

 
A

 m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ac

co
un

t 
co

di
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ou

ld
 

al
lo

w
 f

or
 g

re
at

er
 c

la
rit

y 
in

 t
he

 s
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 I
T 

ha
rd

w
ar

e,
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

an
d 

co
ns

um
ab

le
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

al
lo

w
 fo

r b
et

te
r f

in
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

  
 

38
2 

 B
en

ef
it 

Fr
au

d 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

 Fi
na

nc
e 

 Th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
ls

 fo
r t

he
 re

fe
rr

al
, 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

of
 s

us
pe

ct
ed

 
ca

se
s 

of
 b

en
ef

it 
fra

ud
 a

re
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

.  
A

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
fo

un
d.

 
 

 Fr
au

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

de
te

ct
io

n 
is

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 s
ta

tu
te

, p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l g
ui

de
lin

es
 

an
d 

E
FD

C
’s

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
or

de
rs

, f
in

an
ci

al
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
an

d 
ot

he
r e

xi
st

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s.

 
Th

e 
S

ec
tio

n 
is

 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ac

tio
n 

on
 re

fe
rr

al
s.

 

Page 26



- 9
 - 

 
R

ep
or

t 
N

o.
 

 
Ti

tle
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 

A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
 

 
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
/C

om
m

en
ts

 
 

 
37

0 
 E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t L

is
t 

 H
R

/F
in

an
ce

 
 C

or
po

ra
te

 c
on

tro
ls

 fo
r m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t d
at

a 
ar

e 
no

t o
pe

ra
tin

g 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

ily
. T

he
 a

ud
it 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
da

ta
 h

el
d 

on
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t l

is
t a

nd
 H

R
/P

ay
ro

ll 
sy

st
em

. 
Th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t l

is
t d

at
a 

on
 th

e 
H

R
/P

ay
ro

ll 
sy

st
em

 w
as

 n
ot

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e.

  
 

 Th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
sy

st
em

 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

re
m

ai
n 

an
d 

le
av

e 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 o
pe

n 
to

 
er

ro
r. 

C
on

tro
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

H
R

: 
  - 

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 q
ua

rte
rly

 re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
pa

yr
ol

l a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t l
is

t d
at

a 
an

d 
as

ki
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
s 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 d

at
a 

is
 c

or
re

ct
. 

 - 
up

da
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

in
al

 c
ol

um
n 

po
in

t 
da

ta
 f

or
 a

ll 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

on
 t

he
 n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
 a

nd
 t

hi
s 

be
in

g 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 r
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
as

 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t. 

 
39

0 
 U

se
 o

f C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

(d
ra

ft 
re

po
rt)

 

 A
ll 

 G
en

er
al

ly
, 

it 
w

as
 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
w

as
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 in

 C
on

tra
ct

 
S

ta
nd

in
g 

O
rd

er
s.

 O
ve

ra
ll,

 b
ot

h 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l 
co

st
s 

ap
pe

ar
ed

 t
o 

be
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e,
 

w
ith

 r
at

es
 g

en
er

al
ly

 c
om

pa
rin

g 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 
to

 m
ar

ke
t r

at
es

. 
  Th

er
e 

is
 

no
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
st

 
co

de
 

fo
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s’

 
fe

es
. 

Th
es

e 
fe

es
 

ha
d 

be
en

 
co

de
d 

to
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
co

st
 c

od
es

, 
m

ak
in

g 
it 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
to

ta
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
. 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t i
t w

as
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 s
om

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

w
er

e 
no

t f
or

m
al

ly
 te

nd
er

ed
, a

nd
/ 

or
 w

er
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 re
tro

sp
ec

tiv
el

y 
w

ith
 

M
em

be
r a

pp
ro

va
l. 

 T
he

 to
ta

l v
al

ue
 o

f s
om

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

, s
om

et
im

es
 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 th
e 

lim
it 

fo
r f

or
m

al
 te

nd
er

in
g.

 It
 

w
as

 a
ls

o 
no

te
d 

th
at

 te
nd

er
in

g/
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
qu

ot
es

 fr
om

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

su
pp

lie
rs

 w
er

e 
no

t c
on

si
st

en
tly

 re
ta

in
ed

.  
 

 O
ve

r 
th

e 
tw

o 
an

d 
a 

ha
lf 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

, t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

cu
rr

ed
 

ov
er

 
£2

 
m

ill
io

n 
of

 
re

ve
nu

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s.
  

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 o
ve

r 
40

%
 o

f 
th

is
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
, 

w
ith

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
Le

ga
l, 

A
dm

in
 &

 E
st

at
es

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r a

 fu
rth

er
 3

0%
 c

om
bi

ne
d.

 
 O

ve
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d,

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

al
so

 i
nc

ur
re

d 
ov

er
 £

1.
5 

m
ill

io
n 

of
 c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s.
  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 o

ve
r 

75
%

 
of

 
th

is
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
, 

w
ith

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r a

 fu
rth

er
 2

0%
. 

Th
er

e 
w

as
 s

om
et

im
es

 l
im

ite
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ha
d 

be
en

 fo
llo

w
ed

, o
r 

th
at

 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
ob

ta
in

ed
. 

B
ef

or
e 

an
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

 i
s 

si
gn

ed
, 

it 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 w

he
th

er
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

co
ul

d 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 
ex

ce
ed

 
th

e 
lim

it 
fo

r 
fo

rm
al

 
te

nd
er

in
g.

 

Page 27



- 1
0 

- 

 
R

ep
or

t 
N

o.
 

 
Ti

tle
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 

A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
 

 
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
/C

om
m

en
ts

 
 

 
39

1 
 C

as
h 

re
ce

ip
tin

g 
 

(d
ra

ft 
re

po
rt)

 

 Fi
na

nc
e 

 Th
is

 a
ud

it 
pr

ov
id

es
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

th
re

e 
ca

sh
 re

ce
ip

tin
g 

sy
st

em
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

.  
S

om
e 

sy
st

em
s 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

so
m

e 
ev

en
ts

 o
ut

si
de

 o
ffi

ce
rs

’ 
co

nt
ro

l p
ut

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
m

on
ey

 a
t r

is
k 

w
he

n 
ke

y 
co

nt
ro

ls
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

ba
nk

in
g 

w
er

e 
br

ea
ch

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ca
sh

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
. 

 A
ll 

in
co

m
e 

sa
m

pl
ed

 w
as

 c
om

pl
et

el
y 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
nd

 re
co

rd
s 

of
 a

ll 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 a
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

m
an

ne
r. 

 A
cc

es
s 

to
 th

e 
ca

sh
 r

ec
ei

pt
in

g 
sy

st
em

 is
 r

es
tri

ct
ed

 
to

 a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 p

er
so

nn
el

 o
nl

y.
  

H
ow

ev
er

, 
a 

re
vi

ew
 

of
 s

ys
te

m
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 c
an

ce
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

. 
 D

el
ay

s 
in

 b
an

ki
ng

 b
y 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 c

au
se

d 
so

m
e 

in
co

m
e 

to
 re

m
ai

n 
un

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 ti
m

e.
 

 
 

38
4 

 S
un

dr
y 

de
bt

or
s 

 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

 Fi
na

nc
e/

A
ll 

 Th
e 

su
nd

ry
 d

eb
to

rs
 s

ys
te

m
s 

ar
e 

im
pr

ov
in

g,
 a

s 
ev

id
en

ce
d 

by
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

de
bt

 re
co

ve
ry

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 2

00
5/

06
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 c
or

po
ra

te
 s

ys
te

m
s 

fo
r t

he
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
co

ve
ry

 o
f d

eb
ts

, a
s 

th
e 

re
si

du
al

 le
ve

l 
of

 s
un

dr
y 

de
bt

s 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

in
 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f £
2.

4m
 a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6.

 H
ig

he
r 

pr
io

rit
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

de
bt

s 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 IT
 s

ys
te

m
.  

 

 S
ys

te
m

 c
on

tro
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 b
y:

 
 -  

Fi
na

nc
e 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

a 
lis

t o
f b

ad
 d

eb
to

rs
; 

 - D
eb

t r
ec

ov
er

y 
fo

r o
ld

 IT
 s

ys
te

m
 d

eb
ts

 b
ei

ng
 a

 
hi

gh
er

 p
rio

rit
y;

 
 - t

he
 re

vi
ew

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 re
co

ve
ry

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

sh
ar

ed
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

Fi
na

nc
e/

Le
ga

l a
nd

 a
ll 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 re
co

ve
ry

 
of

 d
eb

ts
.  

 - F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 H
R

 p
ro

du
ci

ng
 a

 s
et

 o
f p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 s

ta
ff 

de
bt

s 
ar

e 
re

co
ve

re
d 

in
 fu

ll 
an

d 
th

at
 th

e 
re

co
ve

ry
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 
m

on
ito

re
d.

  
  

Page 28



- 1
1 

- 

 
 

38
1 

 O
H

M
S

 H
ou

si
ng

 
sy

st
em

 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

 H
ou

si
ng

 
 E

ve
ry

 e
ffo

rt 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 re

po
rt 

an
d 

w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

ne
w

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

 G
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
w

ith
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, f

or
m

s 
an

d 
re

po
rts

 
no

w
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

 
A

 n
um

be
r o

f i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

O
H

M
S

 s
ys

te
m

 
th

at
 w

er
e 

su
gg

es
te

d,
 re

qu
ire

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 A

ni
te

. I
n 

or
de

r t
o 

ke
ep

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t c
os

ts
 to

 a
 

m
in

im
um

, t
he

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ra

is
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

ne
w

 A
ni

te
 G

lo
ba

l U
se

r g
ro

up
 w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 it
s 

in
au

gu
ra

l m
ee

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
17

th
 M

ay
 2

00
6.

  
 C

om
pe

ns
at

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
ot

h 
as

 a
n 

in
te

rim
 m

ea
su

re
 a

nd
 to

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
qu

es
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

us
er

 g
ro

up
 b

e 
un

su
cc

es
sf

ul
.  

 
    

 

Page 29



- 1
2 

- 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t C
on

tr
ol

 S
he

et
 –

 F
ol

lo
w

 U
p 

A
ud

its
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
 

   
   

R
ef

. 
 R

ep
or

t T
itl

e 
 

C
lie

nt
 

D
at

e 
Is

su
ed

A
gr

ee
d 

A
ct

io
ns

A
gr

ee
d 

A
ct

io
ns

 
 In

 P
la

ce
 

Ti
m

e 
of

 
Fo

llo
w

 
U

p 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 Is
su

es
 p

os
t f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 

 
M

ai
n 

A
ud

its
 0

5/
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

32
0 

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

05
/0

5 
  9

 
 

   
Q

tr 
3 

 
32

8 
S

un
dr

y 
D

eb
to

rs
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

06
/0

5 
 1

0 
   

 8
 

   
Q

tr 
1 

P
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 c
re

di
t r

at
in

g 
of

 d
eb

to
rs

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 

32
9 

A
ss

et
 

R
eg

is
te

r/i
nv

en
to

rie
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

06
/0

5 
  5

 
 

   
Q

tr 
2 

 

33
1 

P
la

nn
in

g 
fe

es
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
P

la
nn

in
g 

06
/0

5 
  4

 
 

   
Q

tr 
2 

 

33
3 

C
on

tra
ct

 S
ys

te
m

s 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
06

/0
5 

  6
 

 
on

go
in

g 
 

33
0 

C
ar

 L
ea

si
ng

 
H

R
, F

in
an

ce
 

06
/0

5 
  8

 
 

   
Q

tr3
 

 

33
2 

S
to

re
s 

S
to

ck
ta

ke
 

W
or

ks
 U

ni
t 

06
/0

5 
  4

 
   

 
   

07
/0

8 
 

33
8 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

&
 G

en
er

al
 

Le
dg

er
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

07
/0

5 
 1

2 
 

   
Q

tr 
2 

 

33
5 

E
-F

in
an

ci
al

s 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
IC

T,
 F

in
an

ce
 

06
/0

5 
  8

 
 

   
Q

tr 
3 

 

33
6 

O
H

M
S

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 
07

/0
5 

  9
 

   
 9

  
   

Q
tr 

1 
 

 
33

9 
Lo

ca
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

H
R

 
09

/0
5 

  4
 

 
   

Q
tr 

2 
 

34
0 

M
em

be
rs

 A
llo

w
an

ce
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

08
/0

5 
  4

 
 

   
Q

tr 
4 

 
34

4 
C

as
h 

R
ec

ei
pt

in
g 

&
 

In
co

m
e 

C
on

tro
l 

Fi
na

nc
e 

09
/0

5 
  5

 
   

 3
 

   
Q

tr 
1 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 c

as
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
po

rts
 (

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
A

llp
ay

 
an

d 
in

te
rn

et
), 

ye
t t

o 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

34
1 

O
ffi

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

Le
ga

l &
 

A
dm

in
 

10
/0

5 
  4

 
 

   
Q

tr 
3 

 

34
3 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
10

/0
5 

  9
 

 
   

Q
tr 

4 
 

34
2 

C
re

di
to

rs
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

10
/0

5 
 2

9 
   

   
Q

tr 
2 

 
34

7 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

tro
l 

P
la

nn
in

g 
10

/0
5 

 1
0 

   
   

Q
tr 

2 
 

34
6 

Fr
ee

do
m

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

11
/0

5 
  4

 
 

   
Q

tr 
4 

 

Page 30



- 1
3 

- 

   
   

R
ef

. 
 R

ep
or

t T
itl

e 
 

C
lie

nt
 

D
at

e 
Is

su
ed

A
gr

ee
d 

A
ct

io
ns

A
gr

ee
d 

A
ct

io
ns

 
 In

 P
la

ce
 

Ti
m

e 
of

 
Fo

llo
w

 
U

p 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 Is
su

es
 p

os
t f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 

34
9 

G
ra

nt
s 

to
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 
R

D
S

 
12

/0
5 

 1
1 

   
   

Q
tr 

3 
 

35
1 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
12

/0
5 

  7
 

 
   

Q
tr 

2 
 

35
6 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t &

 S
el

ec
tio

n 
H

R
 

12
/0

5 
  4

 
 

   
Q

tr 
2 

 

36
2 

W
or

ks
 U

ni
t I

nv
es

tig
at

io
n 

W
or

ks
 U

ni
t 

12
/0

5 
  7

 
 

   
Q

tr 
4 

 

35
8 

H
ou

si
ng

 &
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
B

en
ef

its
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

12
/0

5 
 1

4 
  

   
Q

tr 
3 

 

36
0 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Fi
na

nc
e 

12
/0

5 
  8

 
   

   
Q

tr 
3 

 
35

2 
C

as
h 

O
ffi

ce
s 

Fi
na

nc
e 

12
/0

5 
  3

 
   

   
Q

tr 
3 

 
35

3 
B

ud
ge

ta
ry

 C
on

tro
l 

Fi
na

nc
e 

12
/0

5 
  8

 
   

   
Q

tr 
3 

 
35

0 
P

ay
ro

ll 
Fi

na
nc

e 
01

/0
6 

  6
 

 
   

Q
tr 

2 
 

35
7 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l
01

/0
6 

  9
 

 
   

Q
tr 

2 
 

37
6 

N
or

th
 W

ea
ld

 A
irf

ie
ld

 
Le

is
ur

e 
05

/0
6 

  8
 

 
   

Q
tr 

4 
 

36
3 

W
or

ks
 U

ni
t 

W
or

ks
 U

ni
t 

02
/0

6 
  5

 
   

 
   

Q
tr 

4 
 

36
6 

E
st

at
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Le
ga

l &
 

A
dm

in
 

03
/0

6 
  8

 
 

   
Q

tr 
4 

 

36
8 

N
D

R
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
&

 
R

ef
un

ds
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

03
/0

6 
  8

 
 

   
Q

tr 
3 

 

37
0 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
03

/0
6 

  3
 

 
   

Q
tr 

4 
 

37
4 

R
ec

ha
rg

ea
bl

e 
W

or
ks

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

03
/0

6 
  3

 
 

   
Q

tr 
4 

 

37
3 

C
ap

ita
l F

in
an

ci
ng

 
Fi

na
nc

e 
03

/0
6 

  7
 

 
   

Q
tr 

2 
 

37
2 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

03
/0

6 
  4

 
 

   
Q

tr 
4 

 

34
8 

B
an

k 
R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

Fi
na

nc
e 

10
/0

5 
  7

 
 

   
Q

tr 
3 

 

36
9 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

Fi
na

nc
e 

03
/0

6 
  6

 
 

   
Q

tr 
3 

 

Page 31



- 1
4 

- 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 W
O

R
K

PL
A

N
 J

U
LY

 –
 S

EP
T 

20
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  A

pp
en

di
x 

3 
  

W
ee

k 
 

C
hi

ef
 A

ud
ito

r 
 

S
en

io
r A

ud
ito

r 
 

A
ud

ito
r 

  
 

A
ud

ito
r 

  
 

Te
rm

 ti
m

e 
au

di
to

rs
 

(1
xf

te
) 

 
A

ud
it 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 p

/t 
(v

ac
an

t) 

 

w
/c

 
au

di
t 

da
ys

 
au

di
t 

da
ys

 
au

di
t 

da
ys

 
 

da
ys

 
au

di
t 

da
ys

 
au

di
t 

da
ys

 

3.
7.

05
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

 5
 

Le
is

ur
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
 5

 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
4 

  L
P

Is
 

4 
C

re
di

to
rs

/ 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
6 

n/
a 

0 

10
.7

.0
5 

R
ev

ie
w

 fi
le

s 
 4

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

 5
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

5 
  L

P
Is

 
5 

C
re

di
to

rs
/ 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

6 
n/

a 
0 

17
.7

.0
5 

R
ev

ie
w

 fi
le

s 
 5

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

 5
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

4 
  H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ts

 
5 

C
re

di
to

rs
/ 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

6 
n/

a 
0 

24
.7

.0
5 

R
ev

ie
w

 F
in

an
ci

al
 

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
 5

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

 5
 

Pa
yr

ol
l 

4 
  H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ts

 
5 

H
ol

id
ay

 
0 

n/
a 

0 

31
.7

.0
5 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 o
f  

G
en

. L
ed

ge
r a

ud
it 

 5
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
 5

 
Pa

yr
ol

l 
5 

  H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
 

5 
H

ol
id

ay
 

0 
n/

a 
0 

7.
8.

05
 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 o
f  

G
en

. L
ed

ge
r a

ud
it 

 5
 

Fl
ee

t O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

 5
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

5 
  H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ts

 
5 

H
ol

id
ay

 
0 

n/
a 

0 

14
.8

.0
5 

Le
av

e 
 0

 
Fl

ee
t O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
 5

 
P

ay
ro

ll 
5 

  H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
 

5 
H

ol
id

ay
 

0 
n/

a 
0 

21
.8

.0
5 

Ex
te

rn
al

 F
un

di
ng

  
A

ud
it 

 4
 

Fl
ee

t O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

 5
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

4 
  C

or
po

ra
te

 T
ra

in
in

g 
5 

H
ol

id
ay

 
0 

n/
a 

0 

28
.8

.0
5 

Ex
te

rn
al

 F
un

di
ng

  
A

ud
it 

 4
 

Fl
ee

t O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

 4
 

Le
av

e 
0 

 C
or

po
ra

te
 T

ra
in

in
g 

4 
H

ol
id

ay
 

0 
n/

a 
0 

4.
9.

05
 

U
se

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
is

su
es

 
 5

 
G

ro
un

ds
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
 5

 
O

ffi
ce

 c
on

tra
ct

s 
Fo

llo
w

 u
p 

5 
 R

ec
ru

itm
en

t a
nd

 
se

le
ct

io
n 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
5 

C
re

di
to

rs
/ 

B
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

4 
n/

a 
0 

11
.9

.0
5 

R
ev

ie
w

 fi
le

s 
 5

 
G

ro
un

ds
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
 5

 
O

ffi
ce

 c
on

tra
ct

s 
Fo

llo
w

 u
p 

5 
 L

oc
al

 la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 
5 

C
re

di
to

rs
/ 

B
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

6 
n/

a 
0 

18
.9

.0
5 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt/

 
R

ev
ie

w
 fi

le
s 

 5
 

G
ro

un
ds

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

 5
 

In
ve

nt
or

y 
co

nt
ro

l 
Fo

llo
w

 u
p 

5 
 L

oc
al

 la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 
5 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

/ 
B

an
k 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
 

6 
n/

a 
0 

25
.9

.0
5 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt/

w
or

kp
la

n 
 

 5
 

G
ro

un
ds

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

 5
 

In
ve

nt
or

y 
co

nt
ro

l 
Fo

llo
w

 u
p 

5 
 L

oc
al

 la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 
 

5 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

its
/ 

B
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

(to
 c

on
tin

ue
) 

6 
n/

a 
0 

 
N

ot
es

:  
A

nn
ua

l l
ea

ve
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
w

he
re

 b
oo

ke
d 

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
, t

ea
m

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 n

on
-c

ha
rg

ea
bl

e 
w

or
k 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

sc
he

du
le

 
 

C
hi

ef
 A

ud
ito

r m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

pl
an

ni
ng

, g
en

er
al

 s
up

er
vi

so
ry

 ti
m

e 
et

c 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
 

Th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
pl

an
 

Page 32



- 15 - 

                                                        Audit Plan 2006/07                                         Appendix 4 
                                                         Status Report at 30 June 2006 
 

Audit area Audit type Days 
allocated

Days spent 
1 April- 
30 June 

Status at 30 
June 2006 

Risk (impact) 
Indicator 

l/m/h  
FINANCE      
      
Bank Reconciliation system/follow up 20  Qtr 2/3 h 
Sundry Debtors inc IT system/follow up 30 14 part complete h 
Creditors IT IT/follow up 10  Qtr 4 h 
Creditors system/follow up 30 13 in progress h 
Treasury Management verification/follow up 20  Qtr 3 h 
Payroll  system/follow up 30   1 Qtr 2 h 
Budgetary Control (capital and revenue) follow up 10  Qtr 3 h 
Risk Management and Insurance system/follow up 15  Qtr 4 h 
Main Accounting and Financial Ledger  system 25  Qtr 2* h 
Asset Register and Inventory control follow up 10  Qtr 2 h 
Housing Benefits inc IT system/follow up 35  Qtr 2/3 h 
Benefit Fraud Investigation system 15 15 completed h 
Council Tax inc IT system/follow up 30  Qtr 3 h 
National Non Domestic Rates system/follow up 25  Qtr 3 h 
Cash Offices verification   5  Qtr 3 h 
Cash receipting system and Income control system/follow up 20 23 draft report h 
* by contractor      
TOTAL FINANCE  330 66   
      
PLANNING SERVICES      
Enforcement / planning fees follow up system/follow up 25  Qtr 2 h 
Section 106 Agreements follow up 10  Qtr 3 h 
Building Control follow up 10 10 in progress h 
Cash receipting system 10   8 completed h 
      
TOTAL PLANNING  55 18   
      
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES      
Car Parking system/follow up 25 13 completed h 
Licensing follow up 10   2 commenced h 
Rechargeable Works follow up   5  Qtr 4 h 
Waste Management 
 

follow up 10  Qtr 3 h 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL  50 15   
      
WORKS/DSO      

Fleet Operations  system 15  Qtr 2 h 
Depot system/follow up 22  Qtr 4 h 
Stores (stocktake) stocktake   3 4 completed h 
      
TOTAL DSO  40 4   
      
HOUSING      
Housing Rent Collection system/follow up 25  Qtr 2 h 
Norway House (inc rent administration) establishment 20 21 completed h 
OHMS IT system IT/follow up 15   8 completed h 
Housing Repairs follow up   5  Qtr 4 h 
Partnering Arrangements reserve -  - m 
      
TOTAL HOUSING  65 29   

Page 33



- 16 - 

 

POLICY      
Grants to Voluntary Organisations follow up 10  Qtr 3 h 
Committee & Member Services Civic Support system/follow up 15  Qtr 4 m 
External Funding system 30  Qtr 2* h 
Safer Communities Team Investigation investigation - 12 completed h 
* by contractor      
TOTAL POLICY  55 12   
      

 

Audit area Audit type Days 
allocated 

Days spent 
1 April- 
30 June  

Status at 30 
June 2006 

Risk 
Indicator 

l/m/h 

LEISURE SERVICES 
 

     

Contract Monitoring system 20 16 in progress h 
Grounds Maintenance system 20  Qtr 2 m 
North Weald Airfield follow up   5   1 Qtr 4 h 
District Museum establishment - reserve - m 
TOTAL LEISURE  45 17   
      
HUMAN RESOURCES      
Establishment list system/follow up 15 2 part completed h 
Corporate Training system 10  Qtr 2 m 
Recruitment and selection processes follow up   5  Qtr 2 h 
Car Leasing ( days allocated from contingency) follow up 10  Qtr 3 h 
TOTAL HUMAN RESOURCES  40 2   
      
LEGAL, ADMINISTRATION AND ESTATES      
Estates Management 
 

system/follow up 25  Qtr 4 h 

Repairs and Maintenance (non HRA) system - reserve - m 
Local land charges system/ IT 20  Qtr 3 h 
Office Services contracts follow up   5  Qtr 3 h 
TOTAL LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATION  50 -   
      
MISCELLANEOUS      
      
CPA and BEST VALUE      
Best Value / Local Performance Indicators       system/follow up        35 21 part completed h 
Review of Service business/ best value plans follow up 10  Qtr 4 h 
      
CONTRACTS      
Contract/systems Audits (see attached plan) system 15  ongoing h 
      
CORPORATE       
Corporate Procurement system 25  Qtr 4 h 
Review of financial regulations and internal controls management review   5  ongoing h 
Use of consultants system (c/fwd)   5 8 completed h 
Freedom of Information follow up   5  Qtr 4 h 
FRAUD AND CORRUPTION      
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) biennial review 35 1 Qtr 4 h 
COMPUTER SERVICES      
I.T.       
Network Security/E-financials follow ups 15  Qtr 3 h 
E-mail and Internet usage IT Security/follow up 15  ongoing h 
IT Procurement 05/06 c/fwd  - 6 completed h 
IT Procurement 06/07 follow up 5  Qtr 4 h 
TOTAL DAYS ALLOCATED   900 199   

Contingency/ Spot checks/ Minor investigations  40 
 

 3 ongoing h 

Corporate/Service Advice  50 20 ongoing h 

TOTAL   990 222   

Page 34



Report to the Finance and Performance 
Management Committee 
 
Date of meeting: 17 July 2006 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject:  Risk Management 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Brian Moldon – (01992 – 56 4606) 
                                                                        
Democratic Services Officer:  Graham Lunnun - (01992 - 56 4244) 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

(1)  To consider the attached report and to adopt the Risk Management Strategy 
and Policy Statement; and 

 
(2) To note the Terms of Reference of the Risk Management Group. 

 
Report: 
 
Introduction 
 
1. This Committee has received two reports on risk management setting out the work that 

has been done to embed risk management into the Council and to note and adopt the 
Corporate Risk Register. 

 
2. This report seeks to further embed risk management into the Council through the 

adoption of an updated Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement.  
 
Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement 
 
3. At the 12 December 2005 meeting, members were advised of the greater importance 

attached to risk management under the Key Lines of Enquiry when the Audit Commission 
is assessing the Council’s Use of Resources. 

 
4. One of the criteria that will be judged is whether the members have adopted a Risk 

Management Strategy and Policy Statement.  This requires the Council to: 
 

• Identify corporate and operational risks 
• Assess the risks for likelihood and impact 
• Identify mitigating controls 
• Allocate responsibility for the mitigating controls. 
 

5. A draft Policy Statement was presented at the Risk Management Group on 10 January 
2006.  The feedback from the group and advice given by Zurich Municipal (the Council’s 
insurers and providers of risk management training) contributed to the attached Policy 
Statement. 

 
6. Further work has since been undertaken on the Risk Management Strategy and views 

gathered from Zurich Municipal and AON (the Council’s insurance brokers). Members are 
invited to consider and adopt the attached Strategy and Policy Statement. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 35



Terms of Reference 
 
7. Following the setting up of the Risk Management Group in December 2004, it was 

necessary to agree the Terms of Reference for the group.  These were considered by the 
Group and were then agreed by the Corporate Governance Group on 13 April 2005. As 
the Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement are being presented the Terms of 
Reference are also attached to provide a complete picture for Members. 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
8. A considerable amount of work has been undertaken in producing the Strategy, Policy 

Statement and Terms of Reference and these now need to be adopted by Members to 
ensure the Council can demonstrate that it has fully embedded risk management.  

 

Page 36



Epping Forest District Council 
 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

Definition 
 
For the purpose of this strategy, risk is defined as something that may have an 
impact on the achievement of the Council’s objectives or affect service delivery to the 
community. 
 
Objective 
 
The aims of risk management for the Council are to: 
 
• Use risk management to promote innovation as well as to help secure existing 

objectives. 
 
• Achieve a systematic, holistic and consistent approach to identifying and 

analysing risks which will be an integral part of all key management processes, 
rather than a separate initiative and will be developed using the simplest possible 
means. 

 
• Embed risk management as an integral part of service, strategic and project 

planning and decision making. 
 
• Establish an effective and explicit system of risk identification, analysis and 

control. 
 
• Embed the process within our established business planning process. 
 
Achieving these aims will: 
 
• Contribute to sustainable improvements in services and the achievement of best 

value. 
 
• Ensure the delivery and continuity of our services. 
 
• Reduce the number and cost of claims arising and improve our ability to defend 

them. 
 
 
Organisation 
 
The Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee will approve the 
Council’s risk management strategy and twice a year, monitor and review the 
effectiveness of risk management measures put in place by staff.  The Head of 
Finance has strategic responsibility for risk management. 
 
To assist in the day to day implementation of the strategy: 
 
• The Risk Management Group will advise and support in the context of risks likely 

to have a significant impact on the achievement of the Council’s objectives.  The 
representatives on the Risk Management Group from each service will champion 
the risk management process within their service. 

 
• Primary responsibility for identifying and managing significant operational and 

strategic risks arising from their service activities lies with the Heads of Service, 

Page 37



Epping Forest District Council 
 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

who should ensure that their teams carry out and record risk assessments where 
appropriate as a routine part of service planning and management activities. 

 
• Any significant changes in risks and or assessments are to be notified by the 

relevant champion of that service to the Risk Management Group. 
 
• Heads of Service should notify the Head of Finance of any significant changes in 

service provision in order to enable them to ensure that appropriate and 
adequate insurance is in place. 

 
• The Head of Finance is responsible, in conjunction with the Council’s Brokers 

and Insurers, for: 
 

• Minimising the overall cost of inevitable claims which do arise; 
 

• Supporting the risk management programme by supplying any advice and 
data both statistical and anecdotal, to Heads of Service; 

 
• Facilitating Risk Management training for the Risk Management Group, the 

Corporate Governance Group and Members; 
 

• Circulation and review of the Risk Management Strategy; 
 
• The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for monitoring compliance with risk 

management controls introduced by Services, as part of the ongoing audit 
programme.  Internal Audit will communicate the management implications during 
the course of Audits and report to Heads of Service as necessary. 

 
 
Arrangements 
 
• The Risk Management Group will report twice a year to the Finance and 

Performance Management Cabinet Committee summarising the significant risks 
identified and reviewing the effectiveness of risk management measures. 

 
• Service plans will include operational risks and action plans.  The Risk 

Management Group and the Corporate Governance Group will draw together 
strategic level risk management actions. 

 
• Risk management training will be provided to Members, Head of Services, 

Champions and other senior managers, with the aim of ensuring that they have 
the appropriate skills necessary to identify, evaluate and control risks associated 
with the services they provide.  Training will be provided through Finance 
Services. 

 
• This strategy will be clearly communicated to Members and staff and will be 

subject to review on an annual basis by the Risk Management Group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



Epping Forest District Council 
 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

Risk Management Group 
 
Chair: Bob Palmer   Head of Finance 
Joe Akerman    Chief Internal Auditor 
Val Evans    Assistant Head of ICT 
Barry Land    Assistant Head of Planning 
Laura MacNeill   Assistant Head of Leisure 
Brian Moldon    Senior Finance Officer (Insurance & Risk) 
Mick Merrick    Chief Works Officer 
Jim Nolan    Assistant Head of Environmental 
Chris Overend    Policy and Research Officer 
Paul Pledger    Assistant Head of Housing 
Mike Tipping    Assistant Head of Legal, Admin & Estates 
Phil Broadbent   Human Resources Operations Manager 
 
 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Epping Forest District Council 
 

Risk Management Policy Statement 
 

Epping Forest District Council has finite resources and both employees and property 
of the Council are valuable assets that must be safeguarded.  We have a duty to 
employees and the public to operate in such a manner that the risk of injury and 
damage to property is minimised so far as is reasonably practicable, thus ensuring 
our continued ability to deliver services to local residents and the business 
community. 
 
The Council will take all reasonable measures to protect and preserve all property 
and other assets and to avoid the risk of injury to employees and the public alike. 
 
The Council will develop its risk management programme to: 
 
• Identify and assess on an ongoing basis the risks to which it is exposed 
• Implement the most appropriate and cost effective measures to avoid, minimise 

and control those risks 
• Use efficient and cost effective risk management as a tool in achieving best value 

across its services 
• Comply with legislation and assist in fulfilling corporate governance 

responsibilities 
 
Thus benefiting the whole community. 
 
It is the responsibility of every manager to implement the Council’s Risk Management 
Policy and all managers have responsibility and accountability for identifying, 
assessing and managing the risks that threaten their area of activity. 
 
All staff must take a proactive part in this initiative, which has the full backing of the 
Council, its Members and the Management Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Epping Forest District Council 
 

Risk Management & Assurance Group Terms of Reference 

Who we are, what we do and for whom 
 
The group will consist of: Senior Managers (Champions) from all Services, 
Emergency Planning, Health & Safety, Audit and other Council staff as required from 
time to time. 
 
Bob Palmer, with Brian Moldon as deputy, will chair the meetings. 
 
Aims & Objectives 
 

1. Draw upon the recognised risk management disciplines from across the 
Council and from external advisors or consultants to provide a more cohesive 
service to the corporate body and service departments. 

 
2. Develop a more formal framework for the management of risks in terms of the 

strategic and operational hazards. 
 

3. Analyse and collate departmental reports on self-assessment of risks and 
produce summary for the Council Management Board and Members.  This 
analysis will identify hazards and risks that affect a number of departments 
and the corporate body. 

 
4. To train and support the Group members as “Champions” for risk 

management within their own departments, and to support any departmental 
sub groups. 

 
5. Disseminate information and guidance to departments, Council management 

team and Members on an agreed regular basis, including information on 
initiatives, developments and action plans. 

 
6. To advise via “Champions” and other means on any changing requirements 

on the reporting or assessment of risk.  Arising from HM Treasury 
requirements, District Audit, or cases of private or public sector best practice. 

 
7. To regularly review the completeness and accuracy of the corporate risk 

register, through discussions with individual managers of the risk under their 
direct control. 

 
8. To regularly report and offer appropriate assurance or warning to the Joint 

Chief Executives, the Council Management Board and Members on the 
management of risk throughout the Council. 

 
However, it is acknowledged that it is the responsibility of every manager to 
implement the Council’s Risk Management Policy and support the group in its 
activities.  Individual managers have responsibility and accountability for 
identifying, assessing and managing the risks that threaten their area of activity. 
 
Individual responsibilities are detailed in the constitution and the work of this 
group does not remove or replace the responsibilities listed in the constitution.  A 
summary of the responsibilities from the constitution is attached as Appendix 
One. 

Page 43



Epping Forest District Council 
 

Risk Management & Assurance Group Terms of Reference 
 

Appendix One 

Responsibilities of the Head of Paid Service 
 
1.1 To promote the authority’s risk management policy statement. 
 

Responsibilities of the Head of Finance  
 
1.2 To develop risk management controls in conjunction with other Chief Officers. 
 
1.3 To include all appropriate employees of the authority in a suitable fidelity 

guarantee insurance. 
 
1.4 To effect corporate insurance cover, through external insurance and internal 

funding, and periodically review the same.  
 
1.5 To negotiate all claims in consultation with other officers, where necessary. 
 

Responsibilities of Chief Officers 
 
1.6 To notify the Head of Finance immediately of any loss, liability or damage that 

may lead to a claim against the authority, together with any information or 
explanation required by the Head of Finance or the authority’s insurers. Only 
the Head of Finance may negotiate settlement of claims. 

 
1.7 To take responsibility for risk management, having regard to advice from the 

Head of Finance and other specialist officers (eg crime prevention, fire 
prevention, health and safety).  

 
1.8 To ensure that there are regular reviews of risk within their service areas. 
 
1.9 To notify the Head of Finance promptly of all new risks, properties or vehicles 

that require insurance and of any alterations affecting existing insurances. In 
particular notice shall be given of the following: 

 
a) The acquisition of property or other assets whether by ownership, lease 

agreement, hiring or loan. The Chief Officer concerned is responsible for 
maintaining current valuations 

b) Any matters arising from the Council’s position as an employer or enabler 
of voluntary labour 

c) Any matters arising from the carrying out of the Council’s functions and 
services or those in which the Council has an interest. 

 
1.10 To consult the Head of Finance and the Head of Legal, Admin and Estates on 

the terms of any indemnity that the authority is requested to give. 
 
1.11 To ensure that employees, or anyone covered by the authority’s insurances, 

do not admit liability or make any offer to pay compensation that may 
prejudice the assessment of liability in respect of any insurance claim. 

 
 
 
 

Page 44



Epping Forest District Council 
 

Risk Management & Assurance Group Terms of Reference 
 

Appendix One 

Responsibilities of Individuals 
 
1.12 All authorised recipients of car user allowances from the Council shall 

produce current registration documents, MOT certificates and insurance 
policies and / or renewal receipts, as required by the Head of Finance. 

 
1.13 The Council is not liable for personal property and private funds unless written 

agreement is obtained to the contrary from the Head of Finance. 
 
1.14 Unless insurance cover is agreed with the Head of Finance personal mileage 

must not be undertaken in Council vehicles. No Council vehicle should be 
taken to an employee’s home for standby or similar duties unless specific 
approval is obtained from the appropriate Chief Officer. 

 
Responsibilities of the Finance & Performance Management Cabinet 
Committee 

 
1.15 To propose the authority’s risk management statement, on the advice of the 

Head of Paid Service, the Head of Finance and appropriate Chief Officers, for 
adoption by the Cabinet. 

 
1.16 To advise the Cabinet on proper insurance cover on the advice of the Head of 

Finance. 
 

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Finance and Performance 
Management Committee 
 
Date of meeting: 17 July 2006 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject:  Risk Management – Corporate Action Plans 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Bob Palmer  – (01992 - 56 4279) 
 
Democratic Services Officer:  Graham Lunnun - (01992 - 56 4244) 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

1. Members are asked to consider and adopt the attached action plans to 
accompany the Corporate Risk Register. 

 
Report: 
 
Introduction 
 
1. At the 3 April meeting of this committee the Corporate Risk Register was approved and 

recommended to Cabinet for adoption. Cabinet, at its meeting on 7 June decided: 
 
•   that the Corporate Risk Register produced by Zurich Municipal be adopted; 
•   that action plans be submitted to the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet 

Committee for approval; and 
•   that, twice a year, the Corporate Risk Register be submitted to the Finance and 

Performance Management Cabinet Committee for review. 
 
Action Plans 
 
2. Once the Corporate Risk Register had been approved it was necessary to produce 

action plans to manage the risks identified. The process to produce the action plans 
began with a discussion at the Risk Management Group on 4 April. These discussions 
were recorded and converted into formal action plans.  

 
3. The action plans were then presented to the Corporate Governance Group on 7 June 

and a number of detailed amendments were made. Some of the amendments reflected 
the fact the key risks had been consolidated and prioritised at a workshop held on 28 
February, and during the intervening period there have been both an election and some 
significant developments in other areas.  

 
4. The action plans set out for each risk: 
 
•   details of existing controls/actions to address risk; 
•   assessment of the effectiveness of the controls/actions; 
•   the required further management action; 
•   who is responsible for the action; 
•   what the critical success factors and measures are; and 
•   the frequency of review and any key dates. 
 
  
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 47



Keeping the Action Plans Current 
 
5. In addition to the reporting requirements already agreed by Members, the Corporate 

Governance Group felt that the action plans should be kept upto date through more 
regular review. Consequently, once the action plans have been approved they will be 
discussed on a monthly basis at Senior Management Team and Management Board will 
have a standing item on their weekly agenda for risk management. These measures 
should ensure that efforts are not wasted on risks that have fallen below the priority line 
and that new risks are promptly addressed. 

 
6. The first six monthly update of the Corporate Risk Register will be presented to the next 

meeting of this committee on 25 September. At that meeting Members will be asked to 
confirm a re-prioritisation of the risks and this will include any new risks that have been 
identified. 

 
Conclusion 
 
7. Now that risks have been identified, recorded and prioritised it is essential that the 

Council sets out how it will manage the key risks. The action plans provide a clear 
description of how the risks are being managed, any extra steps necessary and who is 
responsible. By adopting and then monitoring the action plans Members will be able to 
demonstrate the practical embedding of risk management. 

 
 
 
 

Page 48



ST
R

A
TE

G
IC

 R
IS

K
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 –
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y 

O
F 

R
IS

K
S 

 
 

 

 
 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 4

 
 

05
/0

7/
20

06
 

  
 

R
IS

K
 N

O
. 

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

R
IS

K
 S

C
O

R
E 

TA
R

G
ET

 R
IS

K
 

SC
O

R
E 

C
LU

ST
ER

 N
A

M
E 

3,
 4

 
A

 1
 

C
 3

 
E

as
t o

f E
ng

la
nd

 P
la

n 
20

 
A

 1
 

C
 3

 
K

ey
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

5 
B

 1
 

C
 3

 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

1 
B

 2
 

C
 3

 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t i
n 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s 
11

 
A

 3
 

A
 4

 
Lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 
19

 
C

 2
 

E
 2

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 
6,

 7
a 

D
 2

 
E

 2
 

P
ol

iti
ca

l b
al

an
ce

/d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
17

 
D

 2
 

E
 3

 
C

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
sp

en
t o

n 
no

n 
re

ve
nu

e 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

as
se

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 49



ST
R

A
TE

G
IC

 R
IS

K
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 –
 R

IS
K

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

  
 

 

 
 

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 4

 
 

05
/0

7/
20

06
 

  
R

is
k 

N
o.

 
Ex

is
tin

g 
co

nt
ro

ls
/a

ct
io

ns
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
ris

k 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
co

nt
ro

ls
/a

ct
io

ns
 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
ac

tio
n 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
uc

ce
ss

 
fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y

K
ey

 d
at

e 

3,
 4

 
O

bj
ec

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 
dr

af
t p

la
n 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 lo
bb

yi
ng

 
un

de
rta

ke
n.

 

W
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

co
m

e 
ap

pa
re

nt
 w

he
n 

th
e 

ne
xt

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 

pl
an

 is
 is

su
ed

. 

C
on

tin
ue

 lo
bb

yi
ng

. 
P

la
nn

in
g 

&
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
 H

ea
d 

of
 P

la
nn

in
g 

&
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
pl

an
ne

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ne
w

 d
w

el
lin

gs
. T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
ta

in
s 

co
nt

ro
l o

f t
he

 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
14

/0
6/

06
 

20
 

S
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r c
on

tra
ct

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
s 

ex
is

t t
o 

de
al

 w
ith

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 fa

ilu
re

. 

C
on

tra
ct

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
 

B
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 h

as
 p

ro
ve

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
 w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 

B
ot

h 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

fo
r 

le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t r

eq
ui

re
 

cl
os

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g.

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 w
or

k 
is

 n
ow

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 g

et
 a

 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
io

n.
 

Le
is

ur
e 

&
 Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e 
P

or
tfo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

 H
ea

d 
of

 L
ei

su
re

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 C
us

to
m

er
 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 M

ed
ia

, 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

an
d 

IC
T 

P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 
 H

ea
d 

of
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
 b

as
ke

t o
f k

ey
 P

I’s
 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 

le
is

ur
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

. 
    Im

pr
ov

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s.

 

M
on

th
ly

 
      M

on
th

ly
 

30
/0

6/
06

 
      15

/0
6/

06
 

5 
O

ng
oi

ng
 d

ia
lo

gu
e 

w
ith

 
E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

ot
he

r E
ss

ex
 

di
st

ric
ts

. 

D
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

as
se

s 
un

til
 

th
e 

w
hi

te
 p

ap
er

 is
 

is
su

ed
, a

lth
ou

gh
 

re
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
no

w
 

ap
pe

ar
s 

le
ss

 li
ke

ly
. 

C
on

tin
ue

 d
ia

lo
gu

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

iti
es

. 

Le
ad

er
 o

f C
ou

nc
il 

 Jo
in

t C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 

K
ee

pi
ng

 E
FD

C
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r u
se

 
w

ith
in

 E
FD

C
. 

P
re

fe
ra

bl
y 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 E
FD

C
 

bo
un

da
rie

s.
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
Is

su
e 

of
 

w
hi

te
 

pa
pe

r 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

ea
rly

 
A

ut
um

n.
 

Page 50



ST
R

A
TE

G
IC

 R
IS

K
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 –
 R

IS
K

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

  
 

 

 
 

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 4

 
 

05
/0

7/
20

06
 

R
is

k 
N

o.
 

Ex
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

/a
ct

io
ns

 to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

ris
k 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
co

nt
ro

ls
/a

ct
io

ns
 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
ac

tio
n 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
uc

ce
ss

 
fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y

K
ey

 d
at

e 

1 
A

 n
um

be
r o

f 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 
re

te
nt

io
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pu

rs
ue

d,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ak
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
he

 tr
ai

ne
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l. 

S
om

e 
su

cc
es

s 
in

 
re

cr
ui

tin
g 

to
 k

ey
 

ar
ea

s,
 e

.g
. I

C
T,

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

W
or

ks
 

U
ni

t. 

Fu
rth

er
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 te

st
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

m
ar

ke
t s

up
pl

em
en

ts
. 

Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 
 H

ea
d 

of
 H

um
an

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 le
ve

l 
of

 v
ac

an
ci

es
. 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
N

on
e 

11
 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t f
or

 3
0%

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
ve

r 2
5 

un
its

 to
 b

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

to
 4

0%
 o

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 o

ve
r 1

5 
un

its
 fr

om
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 
un

de
r A

lte
re

d 
Lo

ca
l 

P
la

n.
 

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ita

l 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 

 

A
gr

ee
d 

sc
he

m
es

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 a

nd
 

ne
w

 s
ch

em
es

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

ds
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 
 H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

A
ch

ie
vi

ng
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g.

 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
31

/0
3/

07
 

19
 

S
er

vi
ce

 b
ei

ng
 re

-
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 

fu
nd

in
g 

pr
ov

id
ed

. N
ew

 
IT

 s
ys

te
m

 a
nd

 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

re
co

rd
s 

do
cu

m
en

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t b
ei

ng
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 

Tr
en

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 o
f 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

so
m

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

. 
A

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

to
 d

at
e 

ap
pe

ar
s 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e.
 

N
ee

d 
to

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 

on
go

in
g 

st
af

fin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
ke

ep
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

 to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

no
w

 b
ac

kl
og

 
re

m
ov

ed
. 

P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r 

 H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t  

 

Fo
ur

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

I’s
 in

 
m

em
be

rs
 k

ey
 fo

rty
: 

B
V

 1
06

 
B

V
 1

09
a,

 b
 &

 c
 

M
on

th
ly

 
N

on
e 

Page 51



ST
R

A
TE

G
IC

 R
IS

K
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 –
 R

IS
K

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

  
 

 

 
 

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 4

 
 

05
/0

7/
20

06
 

 R
is

k 
N

o.
 

Ex
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

/a
ct

io
ns

 to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

ris
k 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
co

nt
ro

ls
/a

ct
io

ns
 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
ac

tio
n 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
uc

ce
ss

 
fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y

K
ey

 d
at

e 

6,
 7

a 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 s
til

l 
ba

la
nc

ed
 b

ut
 a

n 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
a 

co
al

iti
on

 o
f t

w
o 

po
lit

ic
al

 g
ro

up
s.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 o
f 

ov
er

vi
ew

 a
nd

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 O
&

S
 

tra
in

in
g 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

fo
r m

em
be

rs
. 

 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 b

ui
ld

 a
 c

on
se

ns
us

 
sh

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 g

re
at

er
 

fo
cu

s.
 

A
n 

en
ha

nc
ed

 s
ys

te
m

 
of

 O
&

S
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

ba
la

nc
e 

th
e 

po
w

er
 o

f 
C

ab
in

et
. 

Th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ke

pt
 

un
de

r r
ev

ie
w

.  

Le
ad

er
 o

f C
ou

nc
il 

 C
ha

irm
an

 o
f t

he
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

 Jo
in

t C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f 

po
lic

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

. 
N

um
be

r o
f 

de
ci

si
on

s 
re

fe
rr

ed
 

to
 O

&
S

. 

S
ix

 
m

on
th

ly
 

30
/1

1/
06

 

17
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

r c
ap

ita
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 S
ur

pl
us

 
as

se
ts

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

di
sp

os
ed

 o
f. 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
to

 d
at

e 
as

 
ev

en
 w

ith
 £

50
M

 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ov
er

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 

ne
ar

ly
 £

8M
 o

f u
sa

bl
e 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 
at

 e
nd

 o
f p

er
io

d.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

 
re

ve
nu

e 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f a
ll 

ne
w

 c
ap

ita
l s

ch
em

es
 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

di
sp

os
e 

of
 s

ur
pl

us
 

as
se

ts
. 

Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 
 Jo

in
t C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

(R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
ap

ita
l 

an
d 

re
ve

nu
e 

ba
la

nc
es

. 

S
ix

 
m

on
th

ly
 

31
/0

3/
07

 

 

Page 52


